
Regular Council Agenda 
for Tuesday, October 12, 2021 at 1:00 p.m.  

to be held in person and electronically via Council Chambers, 
Town Office at 4512 – 46 Street, Olds, AB  

As of March 27, 2020 the Meeting Procedures (COVID-19 Suppression) Regulation was 
enacted to assist local municipal governments meet Municipal Government Act legislative 
requirements for holding Council meetings.   

This Regular Council Meeting will be conducted with the public body present at meeting location 
and is being electronically communicated through ZOOM MEETINGS. The PUBLIC will have 
opportunity to HEAR the meeting by calling this number 1 587 328 1099 (within Canada) and 
when prompted enter the Meeting ID 838 3886 6499 and then Password 041323 to listen in to 
the live meeting. 

TO JOIN THE TOWN OF OLDS ZOOM MEETING  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83838866499?pwd=ZzMrekNEcXdmcnU2TlpNV3RLT005dz09 

1. CALL TO ORDER

A.) ADDED ITEM(s) 

B.) ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

2. ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES
Page 3  2A) Regular Council Meeting Minutes – September 27, 2021 

Special Closed Council Meeting Minutes – October 1, 2021 

3. PRESENTATION AND DELEGATIONS

4. BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF MINUTES / UNFINISHED BUSINESS

5. BYLAWS

6. NEW BUSINESS
Page 13 6A)  Council Strategic Plan - Areas of Focus 2017-2021 

7. REPORTS FROM COUNCIL, BOARDS AND COMMITTEES
Page 23 7A) Reports from Council, Boards and Committees 

8. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL POSITION UPDATE

9. CORRESPONDENCE AND INFORMATION
Page 28 9A) Correspondence and Information 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83838866499?pwd=ZzMrekNEcXdmcnU2TlpNV3RLT005dz09


Town of Olds Council Agenda for October 12, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 

10. ADJOURNMENT

PUBLIC INFORMATION: 
Media Scrum: any questions arising from the media can be sent to our ‘Communications Coordinator” at communications@olds.ca 
and they will be forwarded on to the person addressed. 

CLOSED SESSION INFORMATION: 
When Council goes into a CLOSED SESSION, meeting attendees have two options for continued participation in the virtual Council 
meeting: 

1) You may click on the ‘leave meeting’ button and leave the meeting and then watch our Town of Olds Website and
Facebook pages for LIVE Updates as to when Council will return. Administration will post when the meeting will
reconvene and the meeting attendees are able to re-join the virtual meeting at that time; or you may

2) Stay online in the virtual meeting platform, and Administration will move all meeting attendees into the meeting ‘waiting
room’, while Council is in their CLOSED SESSION. Once Council has returned, all meeting attendees in the ‘waiting
room’ will be brought back into the open meeting forum.

Queries to Council can be sent via email during the Council meeting to legislative@olds.ca

mailto:communications@olds.ca
mailto:legislative@olds.ca


 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Adoption of Meeting Minutes 

Request for Decision 
 

 Adoption of Meeting Minutes 
  

  October 12, 2021   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the minutes from the September 27, 2021, Regular Council meeting be adopted as presented. 
 
That the minutes from the October 1, 2021, Special Closed Council meeting be adopted as 
presented. 
 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
The Town of Olds will respect people and the process ensuring a healthy environment where great 
decisions are made.  The Town of Olds is committed to transparent and inclusive processes that are 
responsive and accountable.  
 
 
LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
Municipal Government Act Division 9, Part 6, Section 208(1)  
Town of Olds Procedural Bylaw 2020-15.    
 
 
BACKGROUND  
The purpose of this RFD is to adopt the previous minutes of Council as described in the Municipal 
Government Act and the Town of Olds Procedural Bylaw. 
 
 
RISK/CONSEQUENCES 

1. By not approving the previous meetings minutes, Council would then not approve the decisions 
they made, as recorded and no motion would be actioned by administration.    

2. The minutes of the Council meetings can be adopted as amended; Council would need to be 
specific in an amendment to the recording of the previous meetings minutes. 

 
 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS – N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Prior to Adoption: Regular Council meeting minutes of September 27, 2021. 
2. Prior to Adoption: Special Closed Council meeting minutes of October 1, 2021. 

 
 

Author:  
Marcie McKinnon 
Legislative Clerk Date:   October 6, 2021 

Acting CAO Signature: Sheena Linderman   Date:  October 6, 2021 
 

3

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



 
PRIOR TO ADOPTION 

 
Minutes of the Town of Olds Regular Council meeting held on Monday, September 27, 2021 at 
1:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, at the Municipal Office at 4512 – 46 Street in Olds, with the 
public body present at meeting location.  
 
This Regular Council Meeting was also electronically communicated through ZOOM Meetings. 
The PUBLIC had the opportunity to hear the meeting by calling this number 1 587 328 1099 
(within Canada) and when prompted enter the Meeting ID 899 3520 1931 and then Password 
642400 to listen in to the live meeting. 
 
PRESENT – ELECTED OFFICIALS:  
In the Chair, Mayor Michael Muzychka (from Chambers)  
 
Participating virtually – ELECTED OFFICIALS: 
Councillor Wanda Blatz, Councillor Mary Jane Harper, Councillor Mary Anne Overwater, 
Councillor Heather Ryan, and Councillor Mitch Thomson 
 
ABSENT– ELECTED OFFICIALS:  
Councillor Debbie Bennett 
 
STAFF participating virtually for the Regular meeting of Council   
Michael Merritt, Chief Administrative Officer; Doug Wagstaff, Acting Director of Operations; 
Sheena Linderman, Director of Finance; Justin Andrew, Director of Protective Services, 
Michelle LaRoche, Acting Director of Community Services , Shaun Fox, Human Resources 
Advisor, Monica Leatherdale, Communications Coordinator and Marcie McKinnon, Legislative 
Clerk. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER   
Mayor Muzychka called the meeting to order at 1:02 p.m. 
 
 A.) ADDED ITEM(s)         
CAO Merritt requested a closed session under FOIP Section 21 - Disclosure harmful to 
intergovernmental relations, be added to the end of the meeting. 

Councillor Blatz requested a public discussion on COVID restrictions and what it has done to 
the citizens be added to agenda. Mayor confirmed agenda placement after the closed session.  
 
 B.) ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Moved by Councillor Thomson, “to accept the Regular Council meeting agenda for the Monday, 
September 27, 2021, as amended.” 
Motion Carried 21-384 
 
2. ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES        
2A) Regular Council Meeting Minutes – September 13 
Moved by Councillor Blatz, “that the regular Council meeting minutes from September 13, 2021, 
be adopted, as presented.”  
Motion Carried 21-385 
 
Special Closed Council Meeting Minutes – September 23 
Moved by Councillor Ryan, “that the Special Closed Council Meeting Minutes of September 23, 
2021, be adopted, as presented.”  
Motion Carried 21-386 
       

4

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



Town of Olds Council Meeting Minutes for September 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 7 
 
3. PRESENTATION AND DELEGATIONS 
3A) Delegation / Proclamation 
Administration introduced the delegation of Janice and Tyler Bushfield who participated virtually  
to speak to the proclamation request before Council.  Janice spoke to their activities over the  
past year and on what cerebral palsy is. Tyler spoke on how it affects him and his everyday life.   
 
It was noted in the introduction that Janice is the National Director for Cerebral Palsy.  A  
National survey was completed last year. Janice will forward a copy of the survey to Council.  
 
Moved by Councillor Harper, “that council accepts the presentation for information and that 
October 6, 2021 be recognized as World Cerebral Palsy Day in the Town of Olds.” 
Motion Carried 21-387 
 
4. BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF MINUTES / UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None 
 
5. BYLAWS 
5A) Bylaw 2019-25 Family and Community Support Services (FCSS) Advisory Board 
 
Acting Community Services Director Michelle LaRoche explained the request before Council to 
repeal Bylaw 2019-25 Family and Community Support Services (FCSS) Advisory Board in order 
to reduce red tape in the funding approvals and avoid duplication of presentation for groups 
being funded by this board.  
 
Moved by Councillor Blatz, “that Council repeal the Town of Olds Bylaw 2019-25 and all 
amendments thereto, a bylaw that established a Town of Olds Family and Community Support 
Services Advisory Board.” 
 
Council discussion ensued on: 
Council didn’t feel the board background history was correct on the timeline of the committee 
Consultation with citizens group would be eliminated 
What replaces this, what is the new process for support and approval? 
Council members don’t see it as duplication 
 
Councillor Harper requested to know: 
What happens to local groups that won’t make the regional cut?    
How many of the 100+ applications were for Olds programs only? 
How many of the 100+ applications had a regional focus? 
How many of the 100+ applications met the criteria as funding by FCSS? 
 
Acting Community Services Manager, Heather Dixon spoke to the regional board review 
process to avoid duplication and how recommendations go forward to Council. She provided 
stats from last year as follows: forty-six (46) applications came into FCSS, MV County FCSS 
Regional facilitator then disseminates out to appropriate jurisdiction. Olds had total of thirteen 
applications, twelve were moved forward for approval and one didn’t fit the mandate. Of those 
thirteen, two were regional.  
 
Motion Defeated 21-388 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS 
6A) Proclamation – Orange Shirt Day - September 30 
Heritage Advisor, Michelle Jorgensen spoke to the proclamation request before Council today.   

5

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



Town of Olds Council Meeting Minutes for September 27, 2021 
Page 3 of 7 
 
Moved by Councillor Overwater, “that Council proclaim Thursday, September 30, 2021, as 
Orange Shirt Day in the Town of Olds.” 
 
Council asked about activities in the area. It was noted that many schools are planning a lot of 
activities for this week, many of the in-person events are being postponed due to COVID. The 
Mountain View Museum will be opened on September 30. The Olds College Indigenous website 
has lots of information on it regarding events they have planned throughout the week. 
 
Motion Carried 21-389 
 
6B) Appointment of Auditor 
Director Linderman spoke on the annual Municipal Government Act requirements to appoint 
auditor.   
 
Moved by Councillor Thomson, “that Council appoint Avail LLP as the Auditor for the Town of 
Olds for the 2021 Fiscal Year.” 
 
Council discussion ensued on the tender process for Auditors. 
 
Motion Carried 21-390 
 
6C) 2022 Flower Budget 
CAO Merritt spoke to the request before Council today. This is the only item Administration 
brings forward for approval prior to the budget being approved. This is to order the flowers the 
Town wants and to ensure deliver is on time. 
 
Director Wagstaff spoke on request before council as contained in agenda package. 
  
Moved by Councillor Overwater, “that Council authorizes Administration to purchase material for 
the 2022 community beautification program for flowers, hanging baskets and planters in the 
amount of $31,000 and commit this funding in the 2022 Operating Budget.” 
 
Council discussion ensued: 
Perennials versus annuals 
Increase in basket quantity and cost of baskets 
Lowering number of baskets 
Tree Replacement program 
Increasing budget  
Local partnerships and funding contributions for extra baskets  
 
Administration to confirm local partnerships and funding contributions for extra baskets 
downtown and maintenance of the baskets. 
 
Parks Supervisor, Gillian Campbell spoke to the operational plan to replace annuals to 
perennials. Gillian indicated that the spring planting bulbs won’t be done flowering before they 
have to pull them out to plant the annuals.   
 
Councillor Overwater amended her motion by amending $31,000 to $26,000 plus delivery 
Motion Carried 21-391 
 

6

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



Town of Olds Council Meeting Minutes for September 27, 2021 
Page 4 of 7 
 
Moved by Councillor Blatz, “that council direct administration to engage local community groups 
to initiate a conversation on partnerships for flowers and maintenance and potential funding of 
the same.” 
 
Administration noted that more flowers and more maintenance will increase service levels of 
staff. 
 
Motion Carried 21-392 
 
Council thanked Gillian and her team for all their hard work, the Town looks great! 
 
6D) Photo Contest Winners 
Heritage Advisor, Michelle Jorgensen spoke to the I Love Olds Photo Contest and presented 
the winning photos and photographers.   
 
Moved by Councillor Ryan, “that the following photographs be declared the winners of the 2021 
“I LOVE Olds” photo contest: 
 
“Centennial” by Cheryl Persson  

 
 
 
“Wetlands Beauty” by Leona Megli  

 
 
 
“Summer Breeze” by Alicia Webb 

 
 
 

7

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



Town of Olds Council Meeting Minutes for September 27, 2021 
Page 5 of 7 
 
Motion Carried 21-393 
 
6E) Proclamation – Fire Prevention Week 
Director Andrew spoke to the proclamation request as contained in the agenda package and 
highlighted the events being planned for the week. 
 
Moved by Councillor Harper, “that the week of October 3rd to October 9th be proclaimed as 
“Fire Prevention Week” in the Town of Olds.” 
Motion Carried 21-394 
 
7. REPORTS FROM COUNCIL, BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 
7A)  Reports from Council, Boards and Committees 
 
Moved by Councillor Overwater, “that the reports from Council, Authorities, Boards, Committees 
and Commissions ending September 23, 2021 be received for information.” 
 
Councillor Overwater spoke on attending Council Policies & Priorities Committee meeting, 
Special and Regular Council meetings, met with residents, Public Art Advisory Committee 
meeting, Olds Policy Advisory Committee meeting, worked the Community Showcase, attended 
the Rotary Athletic Park of Olds – grand opening, attended the Mountain View Regional Waste 
Management Commission meeting, Municipal Planning Commission meeting and the Joint All 
Council Inter-municipal Cooperation Committee annual meeting. 
 
Councillor Harper attended many of the same meetings as Councillor Overwater mentioned, 
Olds Chamber of Commerce meeting; noted that the chamber is hosting a Candidate forum - 
details are being finalized, Mountain View Regional Water Services Commission meeting, 
attended the High School Awards night as Deputy Mayor, also attended the regular and Joint 
All Council Inter-municipal Cooperation Committee annual meeting. 
 
Councillor Thomson spoke on attending the Municipal Planning Commission meeting and many 
of the same meetings as Councillor Overwater, attended a portion of the Joint All Council Inter-
municipal Cooperation Committee, attended the Rotary Athletic Park of Olds – grand opening, 
and the community showcase. 
 
Councillor Ryan spoke on attending many of the same meetings already mentioned Council 
Policies & Priorities Committee meeting, Special and Regular Council meetings, Municipal 
Planning Commission meeting, and the Joint All Council Inter-municipal Cooperation 
Committee annual meeting, also attended the Rotary Athletic Park of Olds – grand opening, 
attended the Community Showcase, a Library Board meeting, Mountain View Seniors Housing 
Golf Tourney fund raiser. 
 
Councillor Blatz spoke on attending regular, special and Council Policies & Priorities Committee 
meetings, attended the Rotary Athletic Park of Olds – grand opening, Oldstoberfest meeting, 
the Joint All Council Inter-municipal Cooperation Committee annual meeting, South Red Deer 
Regional Wastewater Commission, and the Family and Community Support Services meeting. 
 
Mayor Muzychka attended many of the aforementioned meetings, also attended the Rotary 
Athletic Park of Olds – grand opening, the community showcase; hosted the AUMA 
Infrastructure and Committee meeting held here in Olds, participated in the Mountain View 
Seniors Housing Golf Tourney; and attended the Mayors of south central Alberta meeting.  
 
Motion Carried 21-395 

8

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



Town of Olds Council Meeting Minutes for September 27, 2021 
Page 6 of 7 
 
 
8. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL POSITION UPDATE 
None 
 
9. CORRESPONDENCE AND INFORMATION 
9A) Correspondence and Information 
CAO Merritt spoke on the items contained in the agenda package. 
 
Moved by Councillor Overwater, “that the Correspondence and Information Report ending 
September 27, 2021 be received for information.” 
 
Council discussion ensued: 
 
Moved by Councillor Overwater, “that Council direct Administration to write a letter to the federal 
and provincial governments on our own behalf regarding the RCMP retroactive pay.”  
Motion Carried 21-396 
 
Council then voted on the motion on floor. 
Motion Carried 21-397 
 
Added Item – Closed Session 
FOIP Section 21 - Disclosure harmful to intergovernmental relations  
 
Moved by Councillor Overwater, “that Council move to closed session in accordance with  
Section 197(2) of the Municipal Government Act to discuss matters exempt from disclosure  
under FOIP Section 21 - Disclosure harmful to intergovernmental relations at 2:45 p.m. 
 
Mayor Muzychka spoke on the process of how Council will move in and out of closed session. 
 
Councillor Overwater noted the following persons are to remain in the closed session: CAO  
Merritt, Director Wagstaff, Director Linderman, Director Andrew, Acting Director LaRoche and  
Legislative Clerk, Marcie McKinnon to remain in attendance.” 
Motion Carried 21-398 
 
Staff and public were moved to the waiting room. 
 
Moved by Councillor Ryan, “that the meeting reconvene to the regular Council meeting.” 
Motion Carried 21-399 
 
Mayor Muzychka recessed the meeting at 3:45 p.m. 
Mayor Muzychka reconvened the meeting 4:00 p.m.  
 
Staff and public were moved back into the meeting. 
 
Rise and Report 
Moved by Councillor Blatz, “that council direct the Mayor and Administration to write a strongly  
worded letter to the honorable Minister Jason Copping cc’ing Minister McIver, Minister Nixon,  
Premier Kenney, MLA Nathan Cooper, Dr. Henshaw, AUMA and RMA; stating the Town of  
Olds displeasure with the current Restricted Exemption Program that has been downloaded to  
our municipality.  
Motion Carried 21-400 
 

9

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



Town of Olds Council Meeting Minutes for September 27, 2021 
Page 7 of 7 
 
  
10. ADJOURNMENT  
Moved by Councillor Overwater, “that this meeting be adjourned at 4:02 p.m.”  
Motion Carried 21-401 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Michael Muzychka, Michael Merritt, 
Mayor Chief Administrative Officer 
 
These minutes were approved on the       day of             , 2021. 
 

10

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



 
PRIOR TO ADOPTION 

 
Minutes of the Town of Olds Special Closed Council meeting held on Friday, October 1, 2021 at 
1:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, at the Municipal Office at 4512 – 46 Street in Olds, without 
the public body present at meeting location.  
 
This Special Closed Council Meeting was conducted through electronic communications and 
was held without the public body present at meeting location and was electronically 
communicated through ZOOM MEETINGS. The PUBLIC had the opportunity to HEAR the 
meeting by calling this number 1 587 328 1099 (within Canada) and when prompted enter the 
Meeting ID 820 1313 7415 and then Password 343566 to listen in to the live meeting 
 
Participating Virtually – ELECTED OFFICIALS: 
In the Chair, Mayor Michael Muzychka (from his office) 
Councillor Wanda Blatz, Councillor Mary Jane Harper, Councillor Mary Anne Overwater, 
Councillor Heather Ryan and Councillor Mitch Thomson 
 
Invited Guests:  Brownlee Representative, Mr. Rodd Thorkelsson 

BDO Representative, Mr. David Lewis 
    
ABSENT– ELECTED OFFICIALS:  
Councillor Debbie Bennett 
 
STAFF Participating Virtually  
Michael Merritt, Chief Administrative Officer; Sheena Linderman, Director of Finance; Doug 
Wagstaff, Director of Operations, Monica Leatherdale, Communications Coordinator, and 
Marcie McKinnon, Legislative Clerk  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER   
Mayor Michael Muzychka called the meeting to order at 1:12 p.m.  
Apologized for the late start due to technical difficulties.  
 
 A.) ADDED ITEM(s)         
None 
 
 B.) ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Moved by Councillor Blatz, “to accept the Special Closed Council meeting agenda for the 
Friday, October 1, 2021, as presented.” 
Motion Carried 21-402 
     
2. CLOSED SESSION 
Section three (2) business will be conducted in a CLOSED SESSION under FOIP as follows:  
FOIP Section 16 – Disclosure harmful to business interests of a third party 
FOIP Section 25 – Disclosure harmful to economic and other interests of a public body 
FOIP Section 27 – Privileged Information 
 
Moved by Councillor Harper, “that Council move to closed session in accordance with  
Section 197(2) of the Municipal Government Act to discuss matters exempt from disclosure  
under FOIP Section 16, 25 and 27 at 1:15 p.m. with CAO Merritt, Director Linderman, Director  
Wagstaff, Rodd Thorkelsson, David Lewis, Monica Leatherdale and Marcie McKinnon to remain  
in attendance.” 
Motion Carried 21-403 
 
There were no public or staff participants in the meeting to be moved to the waiting room.  

11

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



Town of Olds Special Closed Council Meeting Minutes for October 1, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Moved by Councillor Ryan, “that the meeting reconvene to the regular Council meeting.” 
Motion Carried 21-404 
 
Mayor Muzychka reconvened the meeting at 2:12 p.m. 
There were no public or staff participants in the waiting room to be moved back to the meeting. 

Rise and Report 
Moved by Councillor Harper, “that council direct Brownlee Law/BDO to write a letter for CAO 
signature regarding support to be sent to the OFL Manager.” 
Motion Carried 21-405 
 
3, ADJOURNMENT  
Moved by Councillor Thomson, “that this meeting be adjourned at 12:14 p.m.”  
Motion Carried 21-406 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Michael Muzychka, Michael Merritt, 
Mayor Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
These minutes were approved on the ____ day of _______________, 2021.   

12

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Strategic Plan 

Request for Decision 
 

 Strategic plan 
  

  October 12, 2021   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Strategic Plan be accepted as information. 
 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
In Councils Strategic Plan for the 2017-2021 term, focus area one is Good Governance. The 
goal for this area is: “The Town of Olds will respect people and the process ensuring a healthy 
environment where great decisions are made.” 
 
Service Sustainability is another focus area that asset management falls under with a goal “to 
provide safe, affordable and cost-effective service delivery to our community and region.” 
 
LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
As stated in the Municipal Government Act, Part 1, Section 3, the purposes of a municipality are 
to: (a) provide good government, (a.1) foster the well-being of the environment, (b) provide 
services, facilities or other things that, in the opinion of council, are necessary or desirable for all 
or a part of the municipality, (c) develop and maintain safe and viable communities, and (d) work 
collaboratively with neighbouring municipalities to plan, deliver and fund intermunicipal services. 
 
BACKGROUND  
The Town of Olds Corporate Strategic Plan, first developed in early 2018 for the 2017-2021 term, 
has been updated and reported to Council twice a year. This is the third update for 2021. 
 
The latest update depicts the strategies Council determined in order to achieve goals they set. 
For each strategy, an outcome statement has been provided, followed by the bulleted 
performance measures, to see how successful Council has been in achieving an outcome, thus, 
realizing a stated goal. 
 
RISK/CONSEQUENCES 
n/a 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
n/a 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Strategic Plan 
 

Author: Kelly Lloyd, Coordinator of Strategic Affairs Date:  October 6, 2021 

Acting CAO Signature: Sheena Linderman Date:   October 6, 2021 
 

13

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



1  

   

14

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



3  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 16

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 17

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

18

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



6  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



8  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

  

21

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



9  
 

22

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



 

Page 1 of 2 

  
Reports from Council and Minutes from various groups 

Request for Decision 
 
Reports from Council, Authorities, Boards Committees and 
Commissions    

  
  October 12, 2021  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the reports from Council, Authorities, Boards, Committees and Commissions ending 
October 12, 2021 be received for information. 
 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
The Town of Olds is committed to transparent and inclusive processes that are responsive and 
accountable.  
 
LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
Excerpt from Council Member Appointment Policy: 
Members of Olds Town Council are appointed to Authorities, Boards, and Commissions 
annually. Authority, Board, Commission (ABC)” means a committee that is granted the authority 
by Council to make decisions on behalf of Council to which elected officials are appointed to at 
the Town of Olds Organizational Meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The appointment of elected officials the various, authorities, boards, commissions and 
committees provide for the interest of the town to be expressed and to provide a direct 
communication link on matters that Council as a whole, should be informed of. 
  
Central Alberta Economic Partnership 
(CAEP) 

Olds & District Chamber of 
Commerce 

Broadband Investment Committee Olds Citizens’ on Patrol 

Emergency Management Olds Institute for Community & 
Regional Development (OICRD) 

Family & Community Support Services 
(FCSS) Olds Institute Technology Committee 

Inter-municipal Cooperation Committee 
(ICC) 

Olds Municipal Library Board (OML) 

Inter-municipal Planning Commission 
Olds Policing Advisory Committee 
(OPAC) 

Inter-municipal Subdivision and 
Development Appeal Board 

Parkland Community Planning 
Services (PCPS) 

Mountain View Regional Waste 
Management Commission (MVRWMSC) 

Parkland Regional Library Board 
(PRL) 

Mountain View Regional Water Services 
Commission (MVRWSC) 

Public Art Advisory Committee 
(PAAC) 

Mountain View Seniors’ Housing (MVSH) 
Red Deer River Municipal Users 
Group (RDRMUG) 

23

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



 

Page 2 of 2 

Municipal Area Partnership (MAP) 
South Red Deer Regional 
Wastewater Commission 
(SRDRWC) 

Municipal Planning Commission (MPC) 
Southern Alberta Energy from Waste 
Association (SAEWA) 

 
RISK/CONSEQUENCES 

• Council can pass/make another recommendation being specific in what it wishes to 
direct as an alternate follow up. 
 

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

 Approved by budget   � New = Budget Adjustment 
 

Cost Funding Source (budget/in kind/grant) with G/L Code 
Council Personal 
Development Plans 

 2021 Operation Budget 

Total Cost                 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Various minutes are attached 
 

Author: 
Marcie McKinnon 
Legislative Clerk Date:    October 6, 2021 

Acting CAO Signature:  Sheena Linderman  Date:   October 6, 2021 
 

24

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



 

 
 

PRIOR TO ADOPTION 
 
Minutes of the Public Art Advisory Committee (PAAC) meeting held Wednesday, 
September 22, 2021, at 7:00 pm, conducted electronically via ZOOM 
 
As of March 27, 2020 the Meeting Procedures (COVID-19 Suppression) Regulation was enacted to 
assist local municipal governments meet Municipal Government Act legislative requirements for holding 
Council Committee meetings. The PUBLIC had the opportunity to watch the LIVE STREAM of the 
Council Committee meeting.  

ATTENDANCE:  

Lori-Jo Graham, Nan McKernan, Judy Douglas (left meeting at 8:38 pm), Michael Brown, 
Councillor Mary Anne Overwater, Councillor Mary Jane Harper, Michelle LaRoche (Director of 
Community Services), Michelle Jorgensen (Heritage Advisor), Kevin Johnson (Artist) joined the 
meeting at 7:35 pm and left after his presentation 

Chair:  Lori-Jo Graham Meeting Recorder: Michelle Jorgensen     

1. CALL TO ORDER 
a) Check-in - Chair Graham called the meeting to order at 7:08 pm. 

- Roundtable checkin. 

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
a) Adoption of the Agenda – Motion to adopt the Agenda by Councillor Harper. 

Motion Carried PAAC21-19 

3. ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
a) Minutes from the Meeting held June 22, 2021 - Motion to adopt the Minutes from June 22, 2021, 

by J. Douglas. Motion Carried PAAC21-20 
Notes from the Meeting held September 1, 2021, accepted for information. 
M. Jorgensen reported on action items around budget and confirmed that there is no budget in 
2021 for PAAC or Public Art projects and shared a sample created of spray paint on vinyl and 
other canvas. Discussion held around pilot project for graffiti/street art wall including materials 
and process. Roundtable discussion included: 
- What is the role of PAAC, is this project/idea in scope? Who is going to do the work? Is PAAC 
only responsible for approving projects that are brought forward? 
- Need to get awareness about PAAC out to community. 
- PAAC’s role is to make “recommendations to Council”, not “approve” projects. 
- Idea came from ORE, has evolved into possible collaboration between ORE and Town(?) 
- Redirect it back to ORE to go through the process map (and possibly collaborate with other 
community members) for PAAC to review a formal proposal 
- This project needs a lead, it isn’t PAAC 
- Olds High School may be able to support a pilot project (M. Jorgensen spoke with R. Mathew 
prior to meeting) 

25

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



PAAC Meeting – September 22, 2021   

2 

 

 
4. PRESENTATIONS   

a) Graffiti Wall – Kevin Johnson, Artist, attended to share further information about street art/graffiti 
wall projects generally 
- He could be an advisor on a project at hand, but he has limited capacity to spearhead/lead 
- Keep it simple, affix some material to the fence for a surface to paint on, need to probably 

deal with liability/caretaking issues 
- Does the community support/need this? 
- Probably looking at about a $1500 project to affix surface to the fence, create parameters and 

let people know 
- Could reach out to other graffiti artists to encourage them to make a painting, it becomes a 

“living wall” and is ever-changing 
- Meant to be an outlet, not meant to be permanent 
- Consider spill-kit, eye wash station, garbage removal 
- Legalities can always pose a problem, ensure visible location, monitored, public/community 

policing/self-policing 
- Put up a ‘wall’ paint it grey, people will find (bring) something to make marks with (don’t need 

to supply paint) 
- What individuals do can inspire others, it can be intimidating to paint in the public realm 
Committee members weighed in: 
- Have discussed mini ‘Art Battle’ idea with ORE as a way to get the idea out to people  
- This should go back to ORE for them to create a proposal to submit following the Mural 

Process Map 
- Publicize what PAAC is and does and encourage Public Art applications 
- Need to describe what the process is now, there was a lot of publicity about the mural 

process in Uptowne prior to PAAC 
- Explained that it was needed to determine some guidelines and a process in our community, 

intentional and positive manner 
- For a pilot project, material doesn’t matter, any structure that can be utilized will work, have 

an event to inspire the process, which is not necessarily something already found in Olds 
- Facilitate expression, should be a fun thing, celebrate people’s ability to create, accessibility, 

legacy of art in Olds 
Motion to approach ORE with positivity, provide them with the Mural Process Map, and let them 
know that PAAC is available to help them bring this project to fruition, but ORE is the lead, moved 
by N. McKernan. Motion Carried PAAC21-21 

- Further discussion around developing the idea and then finding funds 
- ORE should submit a refined proposal, including materials, etc. to PAAC for consideration. 

5. BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF MINUTES 
a) Process map of mural application process – M. Jorgensen presented revised process map 

- Question raised regarding the Development Fee for murals, M. Jorgensen will find out and 
bring information back to PAAC 

- PAAC should be clear on what/why for development fees in the event they are ever 
questioned by community members 

- It was suggested that dotted lines should lead from every box on the right to “yes” 
- Discussed process, PAAC first, then to Development Officer then clock starts on deadline for 

approval of applications 
- This is very specific to murals, could stretch this to fit other purposes (public art projects 

generally?) 

26

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



PAAC Meeting – September 22, 2021   

3 

 

- This is a living document, could revise if need be going forward 
- Should revise to say “Mural/Public Art” Application? 
- Get PAAC Bylaw out to group again 
- Public Art projects – same procedure as mural application, still goes through Development 

Permit 
- Public Art Guidebook being developed to address these questions 
Motion to approve the Mural Process Map for the Mural Bylaw with revisions discussed. Motion 
Carried PAAC21-22 
- Revisit the process map for public art projects generally, not just murals, going forward for 

discussion at future meeting. 

6. NEW BUSINESS  
a) Cross Walk Idea – Councillor Overwater shared background around various groups bringing 

forward ideas for sidewalks/crosswalks in town (i.e. Poppy Walk, orange with feathers, etc.) 
- Discussion included community group would need to bring the idea forward to PAAC with a 

proposal, pursuant to Mural Process Map 
- Idea accepted for information. 
 

7. ACTION ITEMS 
a) Publicize what PAAC is and does and encourage Public Art applications 
b) M. Jorgensen will approach ORE on behalf of PAAC and provide them with the Mural Process 

Map and let them know that PAAC is available to help them bring this project to fruition, but ORE 
is the lead. ORE should submit a refined proposal, including materials, etc. to PAAC for 
consideration. 

c) Question raised regarding the Development Fee for murals, M. Jorgensen will find out and bring 
information back to PAAC 

d) M. Jorgensen will make revisions to Mural Process Map and submit to Development Officer 
e) M. Jorgensen to get PAAC Bylaw out to group again 
f) Revisit the process map for public art projects generally, not just murals, going forward for 

discussion at future meeting. 
   
8. ADJOURNMENT     

a) October 25, 2021 is the new Council organizational day. Next Meeting of PAAC will be 
Wednesday, November 10, 2021, at 7:00 pm either via zoom or in person in Council Chambers - 
TBD. 

  
b) Check Out – Roundtable checkout. Councillor Harper has been on Council for 14 years and is not 

running again. She thanked the PAAC for this experience which she has enjoyed. Chair Graham 
thanked Councillor Harper and wished Councillor Overwater well on the upcoming election. 
 
Adjournment – Chair Graham moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:59 pm. Motion Carried PAAC21-
23 
 
 
_________________________________  ________________________________ 
Lori-Jo Graham, Chair   Michelle Jorgensen, Recording Clerk   

    
These minutes were approved on the ____day of ________, 2021. 

27

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



 

  
Correspondence and Information 

Request for Decision 
 

 Correspondence and Information 
  

  October 12, 2021   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Correspondence and Information Report ending October 12, 2021 be received for 
information. 
 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
The Town of Olds will respect people and the process ensuring a healthy environment where 
great decisions are made.  The Town of Olds is committed to transparent and inclusive 
processes that are responsive and accountable.  
 
LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 
Excerpt from Council Communication Response Policy: 
Town of Olds will strive to respond to the public in a timely fashion after receiving general 
inquiries in an effort to provide good customer service and to demonstrate professional business 
practices. 
 
BACKGROUND  
The Correspondence and Information Report is a collection of general information received at 
the Town Office and is provided to Council as information. Council may choose to provide 
direction to Administration on any item contained in this report. 
 
LIST OF CORRESPONDENCE AND INFORMATION PRESENTED: 
 
ITEM # FROM / TO REGARDING 

A Chloe Lutz Thank you note 
B Simon Mai Thank you note 

 
RISK/CONSEQUENCES 

1. Council can provide further direction on any of the correspondence or information items. 
2. Council can pass/make another recommendation being specific in what it wishes to 

direct as an alternate follow up. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS – n/a 
 
ATTACHMENTS - Correspondence and Information packet is attached. 
 

Author: 
Marcie McKinnon 
Legislative Clerk Date:  October 6, 2021 

 Acting CAO Signature: 
 
Sheena Linderman Date:   October 6, 2021 

 

28

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



29

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021



30

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting Tuesday, October 12, 2021


	1) Oct 12 RC Agenda
	2A) RFD MINUTES
	2A.1) Sep 27 RC Meeting Minutes (Prior)
	2A.2) Oct 1- Special Closed Council minutes(Prior)
	6A) RFD Strategic Plan
	6A.1) strat plan update Oct 2021
	7A) RFD Reports from ABC's
	PAAC - 20210922minutes
	9A) RFD Correspondence and Information
	A) DOC090421-09042021084243
	B) DOC090421-09042021084226



